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          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: We're going to be

          3  having a hearing this morning on Intro. No. 705, a

          4  proposed local law to amend the Administrative Code

          5  of the City of New York in relation to allowing the

          6  Council to direct Landmarks Preservation Commission

          7  to hold a public designation hearing.

          8                 This is a bill that has been put

          9  forth, or I should say a local law that has been put

         10  forth by Council Member Bill Perkins, who I'm sure

         11  will be here soon. But it was called for 11:00, we'd

         12  like to start relatively on time.

         13                 Our first witness is Mark A.

         14  Silberman, from the Landmarks Preservation

         15  Commission.

         16                 MR. SILBERMAN: Good morning, Chairman

         17  Felder and Council members. My name is Mark A.

         18  Silberman, General Counsel for New York City

         19  Landmarks Preservation Commission.

         20                 I'm here today to discuss Intro. 705,

         21  which has been reviewed by Robert B. Tierney, Chair

         22  of the Commission and senior staff of the

         23  Commission.

         24                 Intro. 705 would amend Section 25-303

         25  of the Landmarks Law.
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          2                 Section 303 sets forth the procedure

          3  for designating landmarks historic districts,

          4  interior landmarks and scenic landmarks. This

          5  section requires the Commission to hold a public

          6  hearing before designating anything and that

          7  designations be referred to the City Planning

          8  Commission and the City Council.

          9                 This process, which has remained

         10  essentially unchanged since the landmarks law was

         11  passed 40 years ago, has resulted in the designation

         12  of 1,129 individual landmarks, 105 interior

         13  landmarks, 83 districts, and 11 district extensions

         14  and nine scenic landmarks, totaling over 23,000

         15  buildings under the agency's jurisdiction.

         16                 In passing a landmarks law, the City

         17  intentionally and wisely created an independent

         18  expert agency charged with investigating, surveying

         19  and designating historic and cultural resources.

         20                 The Commission has 11 members from

         21  all five boroughs, and must have at a minimum three

         22  architects, one historian, one realtor, one urban

         23  planner or landscape architect. All of the

         24  commissioners are volunteers, except for the chair,

         25  who also serves as the Commissioner of the agency.
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          2                 The Commission also has a

          3  professional research staff, five full-time and two

          4  part-time staff, all of whom have a minimum of a

          5  master's degree in historic preservation or history

          6  or a related area.

          7                 The Research Department is

          8  responsible for reviewing approximately 170 requests

          9  for evaluation, we call these RFE's, each year for

         10  buildings, districts and interiors proposed for

         11  designation.

         12                 The Department is responsible for

         13  conducting the research and drafting the designation

         14  reports that are the basis for the Commission's

         15  designation decisions.

         16                 Because Intro. 705 would affect the

         17  way the agency currently considers buildings and

         18  other improvements for landmark designation, let me

         19  briefly describe the process by which a building is

         20  considered under existing law.

         21                 The beginning of a process is when a

         22  building is brought to the attention of the Research

         23  Department, which usually occurs through an RFE from

         24  the public or through an agency survey or other

         25  research.
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          2                 In each case the property reviewed by

          3  the Director of Research to ascertain whether it

          4  meets the minimum requirements of the landmark law,

          5  that it is over 30 years old, is intact and has

          6  architectural integrity, it may have a, quote,

          7  special character or special historical or aesthetic

          8  interest or value as part of the development,

          9  heritage or cultural characteristics of the City,

         10  State or Nation.

         11                 In the case of a proposed historic

         12  district, the Director of Research will also

         13  determine whether the buildings being proposed

         14  create a coherent and distinct sense of place,

         15  interior landmarks must be customarily open or

         16  accessible to the public.

         17                 Once an RFE passes these threshold

         18  tests, this is brought to an RFE Committee, which is

         19  comprised of the Chair, the Executive Director, the

         20  Director of Research, as well as other staff.

         21                 The RFE Committee looks at slides,

         22  listens to a presentation by the Director of

         23  Research and reviews other materials submitted with

         24  the RFE.

         25                 Based on this review, the Chair will
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          2  decide to forward the building or proposed district

          3  to the other Commissioners for their comments.

          4                 On the basis of all the information

          5  thus collected, the Chair will make the decision

          6  whether to bring the building or district to the

          7  Commission at a public meeting for a discussion.

          8                 If the proposals favorably receive,

          9  the Commission will vote to calendar a public

         10  hearing on the matter.

         11                 If a proposal is for a potential

         12  historic district, significant additional staff and

         13  Commission time is spent prior to this initial

         14  public meeting to determine potential boundaries,

         15  research in the history of the area, and looking at

         16  the history and subsequent modifications of the

         17  buildings in the district.

         18                 If the Commissioners vote to calendar

         19  the building or buildings, a public hearing notice,

         20  pursuant to the requirements of the Landmarks Law

         21  and the Open Meetings Law will be scheduled at a

         22  future date.

         23                 Prior to bringing a building or

         24  building to a vote on calendar, the Commission

         25  reaches out to each building owner.
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          2                 While the Landmarks Law does not

          3  require owner consent for designation, the

          4  Commission works hard to obtain consent from all

          5  owners affected by a potential designation. We meet

          6  with owners, attend community meetings and meet with

          7  local elected officials.

          8                 We often meet with smaller groups of

          9  owners if requested.

         10                 As you know, with only a few notable

         11  exceptions, the Commission rarely moves forward with

         12  a proposal that is opposed by local elected

         13  officials.

         14                 Because we are an unpaid commission

         15  that meets three to four times a year, we try not to

         16  expend our limited resources on designations that

         17  are likely to be overturned or significantly

         18  modified by the Council.

         19                 During this time, and the time

         20  leading up to the public hearing, the research staff

         21  continues its work. Eventually if the proposal moves

         22  forward to designation, a comprehensive and detailed

         23  designation report is compiled. This report sets

         24  forth the reasons for designation, provides vital

         25  information for the subsequent regulation of
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          2  buildings or building.

          3                 With this as background, let me now

          4  turn to the two substantive provisions of Intro. 705

          5  that would amend Section 25-303 of the law.

          6                 The first substantive provision would

          7  allow the Council, "by a majority vote" to direct

          8  the Landmarks Commission to hold a public hearing

          9  regarding a proposed landmark designation pursuant

         10  to subdivisions A and B of Section 25-303 within 60

         11  days of such vote.

         12                 The Law Department has asked me to

         13  note for the record, that this provision may run

         14  afoul of the Charter's limitation on the Council's

         15  power by permitting resolution, action by

         16  resolution, or if the reference to a majority vote

         17  means action by local law, Charter Section 28(g)

         18  which mandates action by general, not special, law.

         19                 I have the following additional

         20  observations.

         21                 This provision would appear to

         22  acquire a public hearing only for individual

         23  landmarks, not districts, interior landmarks or

         24  scenic landmarks as the term landmark is defined in

         25  the law to mean individual landmark.
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          2                 It is also unclear what is meant by

          3  proposed Landmark designation. Proposed by whom? Is

          4  this intended to mean all property submitted by the

          5  public pursuant to the RFE program, or a smaller

          6  subset of property that the Commission, in its

          7  expert judgment, has decided to move forward in the

          8  process, or does it mean something else entirely?

          9  And I would note this observation applies equally to

         10  the second substantive provision which employs the

         11  same phrase.

         12                 In addition, the 60-day hearing

         13  requirement has the potential to significantly

         14  disrupt the Commission's ability to set priorities

         15  and meet its goals.

         16                 Most RFEs contain little information

         17  and require extensive research by the agency's

         18  professional staff. Meeting a 60-day hearing

         19  requirement set forth in Intro. 705 could be

         20  difficult, especially if the bill covers historic

         21  districts, given the need to do the basic background

         22  research.

         23                 Similarly, the Commission rarely

         24  calendars a building or district without first

         25  having or attempting to have met with the owner or
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          2  owners. For districts this could be a time consuming

          3  and expensive endeavor because owner outreach

          4  usually means neighborhood meetings, meetings of

          5  smaller groups of owners, as well as mailings.

          6                 Thus a significant reallocation of

          7  staff and resources might be necessary to meet this

          8  requirement.

          9                 I would also question whether this

         10  provision is necessary.

         11                 As I discussed previously, the

         12  Commission works closely with the members of the

         13  Council. We try to be responsive to the requests

         14  from Council Members and rarely designate something

         15  over the objection of the local Councilperson.

         16                 All this doesn't mean we don't

         17  disagree from time to time. In general the process

         18  has worked reasonably well for the last 40 years,

         19  with each branch of government acknowledging the

         20  other's Charter-mandated role.

         21                 The second substantive provision of

         22  Intro. 705 would require the Commission, "within 60

         23  days of receiving written notice, that the New York

         24  State Historic Preservation Office has founded a

         25  property that is the subject of a proposed landmark
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          2  designation, is eligible to be listed on the New

          3  York State register of historic places to calendar a

          4  public hearing regarding such proposed designation.

          5                 First, I question the wisdom of

          6  requiring the City Landmark Commission to follow the

          7  action of the State Historic Preservation Office.

          8                 These are two separate governmental

          9  agencies operating pursuant to two different

         10  statutory schemes.

         11                 The City's landmarks law is

         12  acknowledged to be the best and most comprehensive

         13  statute in the country. Preservation Commissions

         14  throughout the country look to the New York City

         15  Commission for its expertise and experience.

         16                 We have one of the broadest and

         17  toughest laws with a body of promulgated rules that

         18  is far more extensive than any other jurisdiction.

         19                 The independence of the Commission is

         20  a bedrock principle established in 1965 and it

         21  should not be compromised.

         22                 Equally important, linking

         23  eligibility for State register listing with local

         24  landmark designation may ironically undermine

         25  protection for historic properties.
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          2                 Let me explain. The State Historic

          3  Preservation Act is like the Federal Act, primarily

          4  honorific. It provides access to certain financial

          5  resources to support historic preservation, but does

          6  not impose restrictions on what an owner may do to

          7  her property. In most situations, listing on the

          8  State register today will not prevent demolition

          9  tomorrow. However, the SHPA does provide significant

         10  protection for historic resources where there is

         11  discretionary state or municipal governmental action

         12  involved.

         13                 In these situations, the SHPA and the

         14  State Environmental Quality Review Act, SEQRA,

         15  require governmental agencies to consider the impact

         16  of their actions on historic resources, and if there

         17  is a significant impact, to consider alternatives

         18  with fewer or no impacts.

         19                 Because listing on the State register

         20  carries with it no regulatory obligations, private

         21  property owners are less likely to object to

         22  listing.

         23                 This could change if a determination

         24  of eligibility would automatically trigger

         25  consideration by the City's Landmarks Commission,
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          2  because, as you know, the City landmark designation

          3  subjects owners to extensive regulatory process.

          4                 If more owners object to listing,

          5  fewer historic properties will be listed and covered

          6  by the requirements of the SHPA and SEQRA, which

          7  means fewer historic properties will be protected by

          8  the Environmental Review Laws.

          9                 Finally, the second provision would

         10  also require a significant expenditure and

         11  reallocation of scarce agency resources.

         12                 While this section does not require a

         13  hearing, but only that the Commission calendar the

         14  property or properties for a hearing at some future

         15  date, properties that are calendared still impose a

         16  substantial burden on the agency, in terms of staff

         17  and resources.

         18                 This is because pursuant to a

         19  memorandum of agreement with the City's Department

         20  of Buildings, all applications for work on

         21  calendared property are referred to and reviewed by

         22  the LPC, and no DOB permit can be issued for 40

         23  days.

         24                 In addition, preparation for the

         25  public hearing, as discussed earlier, entails a
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          2  substantial expenditure of agency resources. Thus,

          3  the LPC will be taking on a significant regulatory

          4  responsibility with respect to properties that may

          5  never be designated by the agency.

          6                 This concludes my comments, and I'll

          7  be happy to answer your questions.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Before anything,

          9  I'd like to welcome Council Member Bill Perkins, who

         10  has really been pushing for this bill for a very

         11  long time, Councilman Charles Barron, who is with

         12  us, and Council Member Letitia James.

         13                 I'd also like to ask Councilman Bill

         14  Perkins to make an opening remark, if possible.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         16  very much, Mr. Chairman.

         17                 I will be brief. I want to first

         18  extend my appreciation to you and to staff for

         19  having this hearing today, I believe on an obviously

         20  very, very important matter for our Council and for

         21  our City, and it is quite appropriate, that is we

         22  are in the 40th anniversary of the landmark law that

         23  we are now taking a good look at, how it has been

         24  implemented and how it has served our City and how

         25  it can better serve our City.
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          2                 So, this legislation, I want to thank

          3  the Landmark Preservationist Community for their

          4  support, and advocacy, is a step, a giant step, I

          5  hope, in beginning to look at some of the

          6  shortcomings that we have learned about as a result

          7  of hearings that your committee, my committee had,

          8  and which have been captured in a report that

          9  embodies some changes that this legislation is a

         10  part of.

         11                 So, I think we are interested

         12  essentially in some transparency, some

         13  accountability, in giving the public a better

         14  understanding in how the process works, and it

         15  doesn't dictate that any particular property or

         16  district should become a landmark per se, just what

         17  it does, strengthen the opportunity for this Council

         18  to do what it has been charged to do, which is to

         19  shed light on how we do business in the City,

         20  particularly in terms of landmarking and are hopeful

         21  that this hearing and this legislation will give

         22  some relief to those who have been concerned about

         23  how the agency goes about its business, and, again,

         24  just shed some light, some accountability, some

         25  transparency, and gives the public a sense that they
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          2  can be included and be aware of what they need to

          3  know.

          4                 So, thank you so much for your

          5  support, and I look forward to hearing the

          6  testimony.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you. Thank

          8  you.

          9                 Do any of my colleagues have any

         10  other questions?

         11                 Okay, I just wanted to mention that

         12  in your testimony you state that pursuant to a

         13  memorandum of agreement with the City's Department

         14  of Buildings, all applications for work on calendar

         15  properties are referred to and reviewed by LPC, and

         16  no Department of Buildings permits can be issued for

         17  40 days. I'd like a copy of that memorandum.

         18                 MR. SILBERMAN: Absolutely.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: If you would

         20  forward it to the Land Use staff, we would

         21  appreciate it.

         22                 MR. SILBERMAN: Yes. It's been in

         23  existence since the eighties.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So, it just takes

         25  about 25 years to get to the Council.

                                                            20

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 Thank you very much.

          3                 We're going to be alternating with

          4  panels of people in favor and people opposed, and

          5  I'd like to ask the Sergeant-At-Arms if we could add

          6  one more chair. We'll have panel of fives in no

          7  particular order.

          8                 Olene Freud. Olive Freud. Michael

          9  Perlman. Virgina Parkhouse. Julian Jack, and Robert

         10  Kornfeld, Jr.

         11                 First of all, I just want to thank

         12  everybody for coming, for spending your time to be

         13  here on an issue that you feel passionate about.

         14                 I also just want to remind those of

         15  you that have not been here in the past, that you

         16  will each have two minutes to state your testimony.

         17                 If whatever you have to say has been

         18  said already, I would appreciate it, and I think so

         19  will everyone here, if you just say that I agree

         20  with so and so's testimony. If you have something to

         21  add, that would be great. I don't think that there's

         22  any purpose at all to repeat the same thing over and

         23  over and over again. So, please limit your testimony

         24  to something that has not been said before.

         25                 In terms of who goes first, that's up
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          2  to you, and whoever wants. And we're ready when you

          3  are.

          4                 You have to identify yourselves for

          5  the record and then talk as quickly as you can to

          6  make the two minutes, okay? Press the button. That's

          7  it.

          8                 MS. FREUD: We're having a hearing,

          9  and that's good, and I only wish that we had a

         10  hearing like this in front of the Landmarks

         11  Preservation Commission.

         12                 You know, it makes me think, why do

         13  people protest? Why do they march, riot, revolt?

         14  Because government won't listen after they have

         15  tried all of peaceful ways, letters, hearings,

         16  newspaper articles and editorial.

         17                 We live in an advanced democracy. We

         18  have laws and regulations but they are being

         19  ignored.

         20                 It is the function of the Landmarks

         21  Preservation Commission to hold public hearings,

         22  particularly when so many of us have pleaded for

         23  hearings. It is unconscionable to ignore this huge

         24  community of preservations.

         25                 The LPC have failed in their mission,
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          2  and they've given in to vulgarity and greed.

          3  Vulgarity. How can museum directors be so lost in

          4  art appreciation that they have become barbarians,

          5  destroyers, devoid of culture? And I am implying to

          6  the directors of the Museum of Modern Art who want

          7  to destroy this beautiful little building.

          8                 I came here to save 2 Columbus

          9  Circle. This Administration has failed us, the

         10  Directors of the Museum of Art and Design have

         11  failed us. I hope the City Council, with this bill,

         12  can do something to save this jewel in a civil and

         13  appropriate manner.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         15                 Now, I just want to mention very

         16  clearly that this hearing is about the way that

         17  landmarks get done. The way, the process that takes

         18  place.

         19                 I am not going to entertain anyone

         20  spending time on particular landmarks that they're

         21  happy with or not happy with.

         22                 This is not about 2 Columbus Circle.

         23  This is not about St. John the Divine, this is not

         24  about anything else. This is about a wonderful bill

         25  that Council Member Bill Perkins is putting forth.
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          2                 We're delighted to hear anything

          3  about that bill. That's what we're dealing with

          4  today.

          5                 MS. FREUD: That bill is here because

          6  the Landmark Preservation Commission has failed to

          7  do what they're supposed to do.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

          9                 MR. PERLMAN: Hi. My name is Michael

         10  Perlman, and I am speaking on behalf of the

         11  Committee to Save the Trylon Theater, which I

         12  founded this year to save one of New York's great

         13  rare surviving art deco movie theaters. The battle

         14  to save this outstanding architectural gem has been

         15  very challenging, and we respectfully request your

         16  help before the Trylon is lost forever.

         17                 As you know, New York is where art

         18  deco has reached its zenith. It is important to

         19  preserve vulnerable treasures of our City against

         20  formidable and ceaseless threats. Our art deco

         21  heritage has been especially at risk and we are

         22  determined to save one of the most beautiful

         23  examples, the Trylon, which bears strong, cultural,

         24  historical and architectural significance to the '39

         25  World's Fair.
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          2                 Since it's closure in late 1999, our

          3  group and many other preservation colleagues has

          4  sought dialogue, information and a chance to

          5  participate in the proposed new social services

          6  center that will occupy the Trylon.

          7                 Our Committee, which is composed of

          8  the Art Deco Society, Queens Historical Society,

          9  Historic Districts Council, Theater Historical

         10  Society, and the National Trust for Historic

         11  Preservation and a substantial number of New York

         12  City citizens have been turned away and locked out

         13  by New York City Council Member Melinda Katz, who is

         14  spearheading this project and developers for the

         15  planned Education Center for Russian Jewrey

         16  (phonetic). However, after being reluctant to grant

         17  her approval through the LPC, it recently took a

         18  turn. On 10/6 Councilwoman Katz told New York

         19  Newsday that she perils (sic) when it comes to

         20  landmarking decisions, and she told the Crain's

         21  Chronicle on 9/29, all landmarking issues pertaining

         22  to the Trylon must be taken up with the LPC since

         23  that's where the process begins.

         24                 This is substantial evidence that

         25  Councilwoman Katz would prefer leaving the Trylon
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          2  landmarking up to the LPC.

          3                 The Trylon Theater --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Excuse me. Are

          5  you almost done?

          6                 MR. PERLMAN: Almost done.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You're almost

          8  done?

          9                 MR. PERLMAN: Almost.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay, go ahead.

         11                 MR. PERLMAN: Okay, a few more minutes

         12  please. Okay.

         13                 Since August 2005, at least 25

         14  articles document a preservation effort, with a

         15  highly successful rally on Sunday, October 23rd had

         16  benefitted from some local media coverage.

         17                 However, without further progress,

         18  the modernistic facade of the art deco Trylon

         19  Theater will soon be callously carted off to the

         20  dump.

         21                 Major points of the rally were as

         22  follows:

         23                 Trylon is a rare surviving art deco

         24  treasure worthy of preservation and official

         25  landmark status, and should be restored.
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          2                 Number two. The proposal for the

          3  property is commendable, and through creative

          4  planning the Trylon can accommodate it with the

          5  sacrifice of its architectural beauty.

          6                 And number three, the Education

          7  Center for Russian Jewrey (phonetic), the

          8  much-needed center for the carrying community, but

          9  they should be willing to work with us hand-in-hand

         10  and listen to our concerns.

         11                 Number four, the broad coalition of

         12  support for saving the Trylon Theater should be

         13  recognized and not ignored. New York's architecture

         14  and art is truly a major part of our 20th century

         15  heritage and deserves to be treated with respect.

         16                 Queens deserves no less. Queens is a

         17  worthy landmark, especially at the Trylon, which is

         18  one of the last standing structures representative

         19  of the 39 World Fair.

         20                 It bears strong architectural,

         21  historical, cultural significance, and it's an

         22  important part of Queens history, New York City and

         23  the nation. This is a preservation emergency. A

         24  substantial number of people who signed on-line and

         25  off-line petitions and wrote letters are furious
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          2  with the recent turn of events.

          3                 Please grant the Trylon a fair and

          4  adequate hearing as soon as you can. This is about

          5  democracy.

          6                 Mr. Groval (phonetic), of the Queens

          7  Historical Society had recently told the Forest

          8  Hills Ledger if the LPC can landmark buildings in

          9  Manhattan in a matter of three days, they can do it

         10  here in Queens. A Council Member's consent is not an

         11  official law, and especially after Councilman Katz's

         12  comments to Newsday and the Queens Chronicle, we

         13  urge you to please take action.  We have faith in

         14  you, Mr. Tierney, and know that you can help save a

         15  very threatened architectural and historic landmark,

         16  a true relic that must be preserved for future

         17  generations to cherish.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Can the next

         20  witness identify himself, please.

         21                 MR. KORNFELD: Honorable Council

         22  members --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: What's your name?

         24                 MR. KORNFELD: I'm Robert Kornfeld,

         25  Jr.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Excuse me, Mr.

          3  Kornfeld. This has nothing to do with you

          4  particularly. Are you going to be testifying about

          5  this bill?

          6                 MR. KORNFELD: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Good.

          8                 MR. KORNFELD: I'm an architect and a

          9  former chair of the Bronx Landmarks Task Force. I

         10  serve on the board of the Historic Districts

         11  Council, and am vice president of the Friends of the

         12  Old Crogon Aqueduct and Research Director for the

         13  Riverdale Historic District, from that designation.

         14                 I urge the City Council to enact the

         15  proposed legislation. It's desperately needed to

         16  bring checks and balances into the landmarking

         17  process.

         18                 In theory, landmarks are decided by

         19  determining eligibility, evaluating property to see

         20  if it meets the criteria and holding a public

         21  hearing is part of deciding if it merits

         22  designation.

         23                 In practice the fate of designations

         24  is often decided behind closed doors, long before a

         25  public hearing, even in a case of properties that do
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          2  merit designation.

          3                 There's a long list of parties

          4  ranging from the Mayor to agency commissioners and

          5  powerful institutions who essentially have veto

          6  power over designations before they ever come before

          7  the public.

          8                 Other properties languish just

          9  because they lack a champion. The Borough of the

         10  Bronx, for example, has received only a handful of

         11  designations since the Year 2000, and not for lack

         12  of merit.

         13                 No process can be perfect, but this

         14  one could be a lot less imperfect. I'm not

         15  suggesting that the Council become a surrogate

         16  landmarks commission to secondguess the judgment of

         17  the Commission, but when the Commission refuses to

         18  hear properties that clearly meet the criteria when

         19  a substantial body or preservation advocates,

         20  professionals and historians question their judgment

         21  as in 2 Columbus Circle, or when a demonstrably

         22  significant historic resource is allowed to languish

         23  for decades after being entered on the National

         24  Register, like Grand Concourse Historic District,

         25  then something has to be fixed.
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          2                 In some cases, properties such as the

          3  Riverdale Historic District, which was finally

          4  designated, have been untouched for decades because

          5  it's difficult to define them and write regulations

          6  based on past experience.

          7                 Today, modern architecture and civil

          8  engineering work such as the Old Croton Aqueduct,

          9  items that do not fit the traditional mold of

         10  historic buildings are particularly at risk.

         11                 This bill could go a long way to

         12  providing an answer. I recommend a few minor

         13  modifications. The language of subsection 4 should

         14  specify what it means for property to be the subject

         15  of a proposed landmark designation, and also should

         16  be expanded to reference properties that are already

         17  listed on the national register or national historic

         18  landmarks and not just ones that are determined to

         19  be eligible.

         20                 These points aside, I urge you to

         21  pass this important and urgently needed law.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 MS. JACK: Good afternoon, Council. My
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          2  name is Julienne Jack. I'm President of the Harlem

          3  Preservation and the daughter of Hulenie Jack, who

          4  was the first African American Borough President of

          5  Manhattan.

          6                 I come to you this morning to thank

          7  Councilman Perkins for bringing this bill into

          8  existence. We are fighting against the Landmarks

          9  Preservation Council that seems to feel that they

         10  are omnipotent, above the law and above public

         11  opinion.

         12                 We are actually representing a

         13  section of Harlem on 118th Street, and St. Nicholas

         14  Avenue, that is a jazz memorial area. We have the

         15  Cecil Hotel, we have Minton's Playhouse. We also

         16  have the church, St. Thomas The Apostle, where

         17  Marilu Williams put forth the mass, the jazz mass.

         18                 This church is in jeopardy because

         19  Tierney will not get off of his high horse and

         20  designate it a landmark. Nowhere in this world are

         21  there artisans who can replicate the artifacts that

         22  are in the church, on the church and also in

         23  Minton's Playhouse.

         24                 These are things that have been left

         25  to Mr. Tierney and the Landmarks Preservation Group,
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          2  and they have total rule over what is designated a

          3  landmark and what isn't.

          4                 Councilman Perkins's bill would bring

          5  that law, bring that group I should say out into the

          6  open and force them to have public hearings on every

          7  building that is designated or should be designated

          8  a landmark. This could save this country's

          9  landmarks.

         10                 Thank you for your time.

         11                 MS. PARKHOUSE: Hello. I'm Virginia

         12  Parkhouse of the Murray Hill Neighborhood, Murray

         13  Hill Historic Districts. Your Council helped to

         14  confirm our designation in 2002 and 2004, and our

         15  buildings were also placed on the State National

         16  Register in 2004, along with some other buildings on

         17  the perimeter of the historic districts which have

         18  not yet been landmarked. And one of these buildings

         19  that is on the State and National Register and not

         20  yet landmarked is in imminent danger of being lost

         21  forever, and that's the Shearton Russell Hotel at

         22  Park and 37th Street.

         23                 This hotel was built in 1922 and it

         24  blends in beautifully with our historic district

         25  buildings. The New Jersey owners are going to
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          2  demolish it in two weeks and build a 21-story glass

          3  and steel condominium, which is inappropriate in

          4  style and height for our historic district, and not

          5  to mention, there is not going to be any rent

          6  stabilized apartments in this building.

          7                 We asked the Landmarks for a hearing

          8  and they rejected it, saying that the builders had

          9  had their permit since last December.

         10                 We held two public demonstrations in

         11  front of the hotel and collected a thousand

         12  signatures of neighborhood residents and concerned

         13  citizens who are opposed to the demolition of this

         14  hotel.

         15                 We have the support of the Historic

         16  Districts Council, the Preservation League of New

         17  York, Assemblyman Dick Gottfried, City Council

         18  Members Lopez, Moskowitz and Quinn, and with these

         19  signatures of support we reapplied to Landmarks

         20  asking them to reverse its decision and please

         21  designate this building.

         22                 Please help Murray Hill and other

         23  historic districts by passing this Intro. 705 in

         24  order to save our landmarks or proposed landmarks

         25  before they disappear from the face of New York
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          2  City.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay. We're going

          5  to call the next panel.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: May I just

          7  ask a question or make a comment, Mr. Chair?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Sure. Absolutely.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I just wanted

         10  to, first of all, thank this panel and the others

         11  that are coming for their participation and their

         12  support.

         13                 I have a little concern in that we

         14  are very critical of the Commissioner, rightfully

         15  so, where he's fallen short of what it is we'd like

         16  him to see, but I tried to remind folks that the

         17  Commissioner works for the Mayor. And that it's very

         18  important that we understand that it's not always

         19  simply the policy of the Commissioner that we have

         20  concerns with. And I just want to raise that in case

         21  anybody wants to respond to that, because I think

         22  it's very, very important that we understand that

         23  this is a Mayoral agency and therefore by definition

         24  follows the vision of the Mayor.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay, the next
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          2  panel that will be coming up, Sherida Paulsen.

          3  Amanda Hiller. Roger Lang and Michael Slattery.

          4                 And, again, I ask you to please keep

          5  your testimony focused on the Perkins' bill

          6  specifically.

          7                 We're ready. We have created a custom

          8  already. So, Mr. Lang, you can start.

          9                 MR. LANG: Okay, I will.

         10                 Good morning, Chairman Felder and

         11  members of the Subcommittee. I'm Roger Lang,

         12  speaking on behalf of the New York Landmarks

         13  Conservancy.

         14                 The Conservancy understands and

         15  shares the impulses that have led to this proposal

         16  by Council Member Perkins.

         17                 We, too, have a long list of

         18  potential landmarks which we want the Commission to

         19  calendar and consider. 2 Columbus Circle was on that

         20  list, and we regret it did not receive its day in

         21  court before the Commission.

         22                 We recognize that the City Council

         23  has a substantial role in the landmarking process

         24  already, by virtue of its power to ratify or deny an

         25  individual designation or to modify the boundaries
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          2  of a district designation. That is why we spend so

          3  much time testifying before you.

          4                 We do not oppose in principle the

          5  concept of making it possible for a majority of the

          6  Council to call upon the Commission to calendar and

          7  hear a proposal for designation, especially if it

          8  has widespread public support and raises compelling

          9  issues.

         10                 We hope that the legislation could be

         11  refined so that the number of hearings called for by

         12  the Council are limited so as not to overburden the

         13  Commission's staff and workload.

         14                 In fact, wouldn't it even be better

         15  if the Council and the Commission could work out an

         16  informal agreement about how the Council could put

         17  forward a limited number of designation hearing

         18  requests annually. That seems to us to be the best,

         19  most pragmatic and perhaps effective solution.

         20                 As you know better than most, good

         21  politics remains the art of compromise.

         22                 We cannot support, however, the final

         23  provisions of the draft legislation, which

         24  essentially allows the State historic preservation

         25  office to set priorities for the City. This part of
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          2  the draft confuses the standards for listing in the

          3  State and federal registers, which are vastly

          4  different than the standards in the City's landmarks

          5  law.

          6                 This aspect of 705 is unworkable.

          7                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          8  express our views.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Lang.

         11                 Next.

         12                 MS. HILLER: Thank you. My name is

         13  Amanda Hiller, speaking on behalf of the Municipal

         14  Arts Society. Intro. No. 705 would amend the

         15  Landmark Law to direct the Commissioner to hold a

         16  public designation hearing in two circumstances when

         17  the majority of Council members votes to direct them

         18  to do so, or when the State SHPO identifies a

         19  property as eligible for the State and National

         20  Registers.

         21                 How ever well intentioned the bill

         22  is, we believe it will have a damaging effect on

         23  historic preservation in New York City and for that

         24  reason we oppose it.

         25                 If the bill were to pass, it could
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          2  seriously interfere with the Commission's ability to

          3  set priorities and to perform its regulatory

          4  functions. The proposed bill places no limit on the

          5  number of buildings the Council could direct the

          6  Commission to hear, nor does it define any criteria

          7  for buildings that the Commission would be required

          8  to hear. Conceivably, the Commission could be

          9  directed to hear countless buildings, thus diverting

         10  the Commission's resources from its other functions.

         11                 The proposal to force a hearing when

         12  a building is found eligible for listing on the

         13  State and National Registers is ill-conceived. While

         14  the City landmarks law protects historic buildings

         15  through regulation, the State and National Register

         16  program encourages preservation through incentives:

         17  beyond being a significant honorific title,

         18  Register-listed buildings are eligible for tax

         19  credits for rehabilitation and are subject to only

         20  limited regulation at the state and federal levels.

         21  As a result, many owners of historic properties

         22  actively seek Register eligibility determinations.

         23  The State Historic Preservation Office makes

         24  eligibility determinations for a variety of reasons,

         25  including in the course of reviewing state-funded
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          2  and tax credit projects.

          3                 The automatic calendaring of all

          4  registered eligible buildings could easily overwhelm

          5  the Commission and we fear could act as a

          6  disincentive to SHPO eligibility requests and

          7  determinations.

          8                 This bill fails to address a number

          9  of important issues. For example, would the Council

         10  be able to force a hearing on a historic district?

         11                 Currently the creation of boundaries

         12  for historic districts requires the professional

         13  expertise of the Landmarks Commission and its staff.

         14  Does the Council actually contemplate defining the

         15  boundaries of new historic districts?

         16                 We understand that there is

         17  frustration with the Commission's designation

         18  process, in large part because of its failure to

         19  hold a hearing on 2 Columbus Circle. We certainly do

         20  believe the Commission's designation process should

         21  be more transparent. But this bill doesn't actually

         22  improve the transparency in the Commission

         23  decision-making process. Rather than opening up the

         24  process to public scrutiny, it simply creates

         25  external mechanisms to force the Commission to hold
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          2  hearings. If the Commission's calendar does become

          3  inundated, the end result will likely be less,

          4  rather than more, open discussion and transparency.

          5                 The City's now 40-year-old Landmarks

          6  Law is a national and international preservation

          7  benchmark. The Council created the Commission so

          8  that experts in the field of architecture,

          9  architectural history, planning, real estate, and

         10  preservation would determine the building's insights

         11  that are so important that they deserve protection.

         12                 The Council could best support their

         13  efforts by increasing the Commission's budget. The

         14  Commission is underfunded and understaffed. It needs

         15  a significant increase in funding to hire more staff

         16  so it can adequately regulate the buildings that are

         17  already protected and properly evaluate potential

         18  landmarks for designation and protection.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         21                 I just want to ask you again if you

         22  can please check your testimony. Especially those

         23  that have submitted written testimony, it would be

         24  more helpful to myself as well as my colleagues, if

         25  you could summarize it orally, because there are a

                                                            41

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  lot of people, we want to be able to get them to

          3  testify, and sometimes it's clear that it's not

          4  going to take two minutes. Even though it's an honor

          5  to have the former chair here.

          6                 MS. PAULSEN: Thank you very much, Mr.

          7  Chair.

          8                 Good morning to the other members of

          9  the Council and the Subcommittee present. I'm

         10  Sherida Paulsen. I'm FAIA Co-Chair of the AIA New

         11  York Chapter's Historic Buildings Committee. On

         12  behalf of the Committee and the American Institute

         13  of Architects New York Chapter, representing 4,000

         14  architect and public members, I would like to thank

         15  you for holding this hearing in regard to the

         16  Landmarks Preservation Commission's identification

         17  and designation procedures.

         18                 It is clear from the Statement of

         19  Intent in the proposed legislation that the Council

         20  has considered the issue raised at hearings of this

         21  body and is giving those of us concerned with

         22  protecting the City's many architectural, cultural

         23  and historic treasures an opportunity to respond to

         24  your proposed solution.

         25                 The Council has identified a lack of

                                                            42

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  transparency as a public concern, and has proposed a

          3  two-part solution by requiring the LPC to hold

          4  hearings either at the direction of the City Council

          5  or in response to a determination of eligibility to

          6  be listed on the New York State Register of Historic

          7  Places.

          8                 While we agree with the Council that

          9  there is a need to address the public desire for

         10  greater access and opportunities for input into the

         11  LPC's designation process, we respectfully oppose

         12  the adoption of these remedies as a solution to the

         13  real issue, which is a matter of clarity, of

         14  communication, between a City agency and the

         15  citizens of New York, including their elected

         16  representatives.

         17                 I would echo Mr. Lang's statements

         18  regarding the City Council's important role in the

         19  designation process, and comment that to expand the

         20  Council's role into the determination of which

         21  buildings merit protection, without the Commission's

         22  initial review, denies the expertise of both the

         23  Commission staff and the volunteer commissioners and

         24  does nothing to reveal the process of landmark

         25  consideration.
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          2                 A key component of the designation

          3  process is the necessary review by the staff of the

          4  Landmarks Commission to determine whether or not a

          5  building or site meets basic criteria.

          6                 We would support the City Council and

          7  the Landmarks Preservation Commission in an effort

          8  to develop community consensus on the definition of

          9  a landmark today 40 years after the law was adopted

         10  to clarify this process.

         11                 The remedies proposed in the

         12  legislation do not address the issue of transparency

         13  and in fact would create more confusion.

         14                 As stated by others, direction by the

         15  City Council to hold a hearing would not make the

         16  designation process more accessible, nor would it

         17  provide clearer standards.

         18                 The second provision directing the

         19  Commission to hold a hearing for properties deemed

         20  eligible for listing by the SHPO is simply

         21  unworkable. The criteria are different.

         22                 The issue of criteria is a very real

         23  one. The LPC is one of the few preservation

         24  oversight agencies in the United States to have real

         25  regulatory powers over an owner's right to change a
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          2  designated property, unlike the State or federal

          3  listings which typically have no real impact on an

          4  owner's ability to make changes unless there is

          5  State or federal funding involved.

          6                 The New York City Landmarks Law

          7  provides our City's built environment with real

          8  protection by involving the Commission staff, the

          9  Commissioners and the public in the review of

         10  proposed changes.

         11                 The Commission currently considers

         12  whether or not a property is suitable for regulatory

         13  oversight during the designation process, but that

         14  is not stated in the Commission's literature.

         15                 The need for clear standards is real

         16  and requires an open debate.

         17                 In conclusion, the AIA New York

         18  Chapter again thanks the City Council for beginning

         19  the debate on the designation process, opposes the

         20  current legislation that is proposed, and looks

         21  forward to an opportunity to work with the Council

         22  and the Commission to developing standards that are

         23  clear to all involved in the preservation community

         24  and protect our City's past.

         25                 MR. SLATTERY: Yes, Michael Slattery,
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          2  Real Estate Board of New York.

          3                 With 23,000 properties designated in

          4  40 years and others which have been calendared and

          5  still waiting, one can make the argument that the

          6  hearing process has only been too robust. And the

          7  bill here to create transparency is not achieved by

          8  this legislation. In fact, what it will do is it

          9  will actually supplement and provide two additional

         10  requirements, one through the SHPO and the other

         11  through the Council Directive, and I think both are

         12  problematic.

         13                 First, the SHPO will actually

         14  provide, give to the State agency a determinative

         15  role in the City process, which we think is bad

         16  government. Not only will it provide an oversight

         17  for landmarks, it could also actually overrule the

         18  City Council.  If they decide that something does

         19  not merit a hearing, preservations could go through

         20  the SHPO to get a property listed.

         21                 Secondly, the City Council Directive

         22  does lack standards and the professional expertise,

         23  which has really been the hallmark of the Landmarks

         24  Preservation Commission.

         25                 In addition, holding a hearing or
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          2  directing the Commission to have a hearing could in

          3  some way compromise the Council's decision-making

          4  process where it actually does vote on landmark

          5  preservation.

          6                 And there also seems to be a sense

          7  here that just having a hearing has no consequences.

          8  I think there are very serious and adverse

          9  consequences with having a hearing.

         10                 First of all, as someone alluded, the

         11  Building Permits are now prohibited. I'd venture to

         12  say that it's not 40 days, but in some cases an

         13  indefinite period upon which building permits are

         14  not granted, except with the approval of the

         15  Landmarks Commission.

         16                 In addition, some of the practical

         17  problems with using SHPO is that in many rezoning

         18  areas part of the Environmental Review Process is to

         19  look for Landmarked eligible properties. In cases

         20  where the City and landmarks has deemed that no

         21  properties have been worthy of designation, to

         22  require then a hearing because something is put on

         23  the eligible list for the SHPO, would be a waste of

         24  Council time.

         25                 In addition, in one case that we're
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          2  aware of, where the City did actually look, decided

          3  there were no properties that were worthy, a

          4  residential rental property that would have had 20

          5  percent low-income was actually stalled, was forced

          6  to move to a market rate project, and so the upshot

          7  of this process with SHPO was that we lost

          8  low-income units.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do any of my

         11  colleagues have any questions?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you so

         13  much for your testimony. And even though you don't

         14  seem to agree with its effectiveness, I do

         15  appreciate your understanding of the urgency of the

         16  matter, and the fact that we have a problem, a very

         17  serious problem in terms of this landmarking in our

         18  City and how do we get transparency and

         19  accountability and budgeting that makes sense for

         20  the task that the Commission has to do.

         21                 Now, all seem to have a problem with

         22  the State role.

         23                 Now, my understanding is that this is

         24  a role that is used in other jurisdictions. Are you

         25  familiar with any other jurisdictions that use this
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          2  model? And what is the experience that you're

          3  familiar with?

          4                 MS. PAULSEN: Can I answer that?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Which ever one

          6  of you. I assume all of you must have some

          7  appreciation, since you bothered to comment on that

          8  regard.

          9                 MS. PAULSEN: Okay. My response is

         10  based on the fact that the criteria are different.

         11  One can be listed or declared eligible for listing

         12  by the State or the National Registers for different

         13  reasons. If a building was simply important, for

         14  example, to the history of medical research, that

         15  would be enough of a reason to list the building. It

         16  has no impact on one's ability to modify the

         17  building, to construct an addition. If one is using

         18  one's own money, and if you're using State or

         19  federal money, then there's a review process that

         20  comes into place, and they generally would say, well

         21  there is no impact.

         22                 The City's designation of a property

         23  has to really consider what happens when that

         24  building comes in for an application to make a

         25  change. So, our criteria have historically been
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          2  different. As I stated, those criteria are not

          3  published, debated and routinely re-examined.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I understand.

          5  Staff has informed us of that.

          6                 Other parts, like Boston, other

          7  areas, have used this as a way, and I'm wondering

          8  from your knowledge of those others that use this,

          9  it has proven to be effective, has it not?

         10                 MS. PAULSEN: Well, it's proven to be

         11  effective because they use the federal standards as

         12  the basis of their Landmarks Law.

         13                 The federal standards were adopted

         14  after the New York City Landmarks Law was adopted.

         15  So our law predates and has a different basis for

         16  its implementation.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you so

         18  much.

         19                 Now, with regard to the budget

         20  issues, I think part of this also has raised a

         21  concern about budget, because once we begin -- we

         22  get the sense that because the Commission's budget

         23  is so small in comparison to its task, that becomes

         24  a criteria for whether or not there is landmarking

         25  done or hearings being given. Do you concur? What is
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          2  your opinion, any one of you, in that regard?

          3                 MR. LANG: Mr. Chairman, on behalf of

          4  the Conservancy, I testified at the oversight

          5  hearing that you held, there's been subsequently a

          6  budget hearing, specifically to address this point.

          7  I think the consensus that's come out of the three

          8  hearings that your joint committees held, has been

          9  very broadly made that the Commission needs

         10  additional resources.

         11                 I pointed out that in the present

         12  fiscal year, the Landmarks Commission receives

         13  approximately $3.8 million, whereas the Department

         14  of Housing Development Agency receives $4.4 million

         15  for emergency demolitions of buildings.

         16                 It is literally a fact that the City

         17  spends more money demolishing buildings than

         18  preserving them.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: That's

         20  telling.

         21                 MR. SLATTERY: I would like to add,

         22  though, in the few people who were here, it seems

         23  like everyone has a cherished property that they

         24  want preserved and protected. I think it's going to

         25  be hard for the City of New York with its other
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          2  needs, whether it's education or housing, to

          3  continue to devote money to have hearings on every

          4  building that people think is worthy of designation.

          5                 So, I think there really is a

          6  question here of making a judgment using our limited

          7  resources prudently, and making professional

          8  judgments, not always political judgments or popular

          9  judgments.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Now, you made

         11  the comment that the Council might sort of be

         12  compromised or prejudiced through this legislation

         13  if we call for a hearing that might make us feel

         14  compelled to designate or not to designate. I don't

         15  see that. This is not a piece of legislation to make

         16  a determination as to whether or not something is

         17  worthy of designation, it's just whether or not it

         18  is worthy of being, having a hearing. It's not

         19  always the same thing. A hearing does not always

         20  automatically mean that you should be designated.

         21                 MR. SLATTERY: I think the point to be

         22  made is that once the Council takes on the role of

         23  pushing for a hearing, just like the others who push

         24  for hearings, there is a certain element of advocacy

         25  in there.
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          2                 Secondly, I think --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: There's

          4  always an element of advocacy for democracy,

          5  transparency, accountability. I, for one, have not

          6  taken a position with regard to whether or not 2

          7  Columbus Circle should be designated, but I do

          8  believe it should have a hearing.

          9                 So, I don't necessarily equate the

         10  two. So, I don't know if it's fair for you to jump

         11  to that conclusion with regard to Council and

         12  Council members in general.

         13                 This Chairman, for instance, we don't

         14  always agree but he has hearings.

         15                 MR. SLATTERY: And all I would say is

         16  that once you do take action, it's hard to take a

         17  position that that action is not going to be a

         18  factor in ultimate decision-making.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay, thank you

         21  very much. We will now call the next panel. Hunter

         22  Armstrong.  Irene Peveri. Laura Ludwig. Eric Vitait,

         23  Jr., and Annie Alt.

         24                 MR. ARMSTRONG: Are you ready?

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: You can
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          2  start in any order that you wish.

          3                 MR. VITAIT: I've been designated as

          4  the lead person of this particular group.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay.

          6                 MR. VITAIT: My name is Eric Vitait,

          7  Jr. I'm Vice President of the Harlem Preservation

          8  Foundation. I'll read a brief letter and just make a

          9  couple of comments.

         10                 Dear Chairman Felder, I wish to

         11  express my support. Chairman Felder is no longer

         12  here. City Councilperson, Mr. Perkins, thank you

         13  much for introducing this bill.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: The

         15  Chairman will be right back.

         16                 MR. VITAIT: Okay. I'll continue.

         17                 I wish to express my support for the

         18  proposed Landmarks Hearing Bill 705.

         19                 This bill will strengthen the

         20  existing Landmarks Preservation Commission process

         21  by addressing specific problems that we, at the

         22  Harlem Preservation Foundation, have been especially

         23  concerned about for many years, namely more

         24  transparency, and some standardization regarding the

         25  City landmarking process.
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          2                 That pretty much sums up what's in

          3  this letter. There is a need for more transparency,

          4  as most of your oversight hearings have already

          5  brought to the forefront.

          6                 There is, as one of the previous

          7  panel members stated, a lack of some form of

          8  standardization on how these hearings are

          9  determined, how they're held, what criteria is being

         10  used.

         11                 Now, there may be some flaws in this

         12  proposed legislation, but the legislation at least

         13  brings more pressure on the Landmarks Preservation

         14  Commission to hold the kinds of hearings that the

         15  community feels are necessary.

         16                 The fact that there are so many

         17  preservationists concerned about so many buildings,

         18  whether it's a landmark, potential landmark, a

         19  National Registry site, the National Registry site

         20  is almost apples, oranges, criteria, non-criteria,

         21  not worrying about alterations of buildings so much

         22  as saving buildings that are in danger.

         23                 And if you have that ability to be

         24  eligible for National Registry, there's something in

         25  that criteria that says this is worthy of being
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          2  looked at, we should look at it. Never mind the

          3  alternate ability to change or not change.

          4                 So, with that as our basis, we're

          5  saying please pass this legislation. It may be

          6  flawed, but it's something that's desperately

          7  needed.

          8                 MS. PEVERI: My name is Irene Peveri

          9  of the East Side Rezoning Alliance. Our Alliance was

         10  formed in 1985 to rezone the area in the CD 6 area

         11  from 14th to 59th Street, Lexington Avenue, Irving

         12  Place to the East River and include Murray Hill.

         13                 We wish to express to each of you our

         14  support for the proposed legislation and we ask that

         15  you act swiftly to improve this critically-needed

         16  legislation.

         17                 The Landmarks Hearing Bill will

         18  strengthen the existing Landmarks Preservation

         19  Commission process. We're talking about process

         20  here. By addressing specific problems at our area

         21  and indeed all areas of the City have been

         22  especially concerned with for many years.

         23                 Intro. 705 would enable the City

         24  Council to initiate the LPC's public hearing to

         25  consider a proposed landmark or historic district
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          2  and require the LPC to schedule hearings for

          3  properties that have been determined to be eligible

          4  for the New York State Register places, while Intro.

          5  705 would not actually require that the LPC take a

          6  particular action, it would ensure that New York

          7  City properties receive full consideration of their

          8  merit and eligibility by the LPC.

          9                 We join our fellow New Yorkers in

         10  asking for consideration and strong support of this

         11  important and needed legislation.

         12                 I want to move to a personal note, if

         13  I may, and if you don't mind. We're talking, all of

         14  us here, about where we live. We, who live here,

         15  know where we live, and we are very anxious to save

         16  part of New York. If I want to see old New York, I

         17  have to go to Greenwich Village or Harlem. There's

         18  not much less, because developers take everything

         19  out.

         20                 And I'm old enough to remind all of

         21  you or to tell all of you, there used to be a

         22  wonderful statue out front in City Hall that I used

         23  to swim in (sic), and every time I come down here I

         24  still see that statue and I still miss it.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Next.

          3                 MR. ARMSTRONG: Good afternoon,

          4  Council members. My name is Hunter Armstrong. Thank

          5  you very much for this opportunity to testify in

          6  support of Intro. 705, the Landmarks hearing bill.

          7                 I am here on behalf of myself, and

          8  also to read a brief statement of Robert M. Stern,

          9  one of America's leading modern architects and the

         10  foremost historian of New York City with his volumes

         11  New York 1880, New York 1900, New York 1930, New

         12  York 1960 and coming soon, New York 2000.

         13                 Mr. Stern knows the City and its

         14  landmarks better than almost anyone. He writes. I am

         15  writing to lend my strong support to Intro. 705, the

         16  Landmarks Hearing Bill, before the City Council. I

         17  regret that this legislation is necessary but the

         18  recent record of the Landmarks Preservation

         19  Commission, one need only point to the tragic

         20  mishandling of 2 Columbus Circle, apparently

         21  mandates this kind of oversight.

         22                 Thank you very much.

         23                 MS. LUDWIG: My name is Laura Ludwig,

         24  and along with Annette Rosen, I co-chair the Arts

         25  Landmarks Committee of the Women's City Club of New
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          2  York, a 90-year-old non-profit, nonpartisan civic

          3  organization that shapes public policy through

          4  education, advocacy and citizen participation.

          5                 We strongly support the Landmarks

          6  Hearing Bill, Intro. 705, introduced by Council

          7  Member Perkins.

          8                 The Women's City Club coordinated the

          9  report on problems experienced by community groups

         10  working with the Landmarks Preservation Commission,

         11  which led to three oversight hearings on the

         12  Administrative procedures at the LPC.

         13                 This bill is a positive response to

         14  the extensive testimony offered at those hearings.

         15  Citizens representing all boroughs expressed their

         16  concern that in recent years the LPC has fallen

         17  behind in its mission to protect the City's

         18  significant buildings and historic neighborhoods,

         19  while maintaining a decision-making process, lacking

         20  in transparency.

         21                 The Women's City Club believes that

         22  this bill will enable City Council members to

         23  partner with preservation groups from their

         24  communities to bring forward eligible buildings for

         25  consideration by the LPC.
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          2                 Passage of the bill would ensure a

          3  timely, fair and open hearing for endangered

          4  significant buildings, particularly in those

          5  incidences also where a building is a candidate for

          6  the State and National Register for Historic Places.

          7                 We urge the Council to pass Intro.

          8  705.

          9                 MS. ALT: My name is Anice Alt and I'm

         10  here on behalf of DOCOMOMO New York Tristate, which

         11  is a local chapter of national and international

         12  organizations focused on identifying and protecting

         13  buildings and sites of the modern movement,

         14  especially those of mid-20th century architecture.

         15                 DOCOMOMO New York Tristate supports

         16  the changes proposed in the Landmark Hearing Bill

         17  Intro. 705. We believe an alternative to the

         18  Commission's current closed process for calendaring

         19  hearings is needed. Both proposed alternatives would

         20  reduce the role of individual tastes, political

         21  pressures, and owner influence in calendaring

         22  decisions and it would increase the opportunity for

         23  public input.

         24                 A Council member working with his or

         25  her constituents should have the means for entering
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          2  projects that further their shared goals. Equally

          3  important is the opportunity for buildings to obtain

          4  a hearing when they are State and National Registry

          5  eligible.

          6                 The proposed amendments do not

          7  diminish the role of a Landmark Preservation

          8  Commission, as the Commissioners will continue to

          9  make the designation determination following every

         10  hearing.

         11                 The amendment will give buildings

         12  that citizens deem significant fair access to the

         13  Commission's expertise.

         14                 We ask that you support this

         15  important legislation and we thank Council members

         16  behind this bill, especially its author, Bill

         17  Perkins. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 Do any of my colleagues have any

         21  questions?

         22                 Council Member James.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: To the last

         24  speaker, what would be your compromise.

         25                 MS. ALT: I'm afraid I'm not prepared
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          2  today to offer a compromise. They have not

          3  officially taken up talking about this. I'm sure

          4  I'll take the question back and ask them to consider

          5  it.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you.

          7                 And why the objection to the State

          8  Historic Preservation Office?

          9                 MS. ALT: I'm sorry, it's not an

         10  objection.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: It's not an

         12  objection?

         13                 MS. ALT: No.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay, thank

         15  you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 The next panel we have is Eliyanna

         19  Kaiser, I believe. Elizabeth Felicella. Melissa

         20  Baldock. Christabel Gough. I got that wrong last

         21  time as well. And Carolyn Kent. And we are honored

         22  to have Council Member Gale Brewer joining us right

         23  now.

         24                 All right, we'll start from the left,

         25  so that no one makes any trouble. My left. My left.
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          2  My left.

          3                 MS. BALDOCK: You mean me?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

          5                 MS. BALDOCK: Good morning, Council

          6  members. I'm Melissa Baldock, from Greenwich Village

          7  Society for Historic Preservation.

          8                 GVSHP is a non-profit organization

          9  dedicated to preserving the architectural heritage

         10  and cultural history of Greenwich Village and East

         11  Village.

         12                 I am here today to express GVSHP's

         13  support for Intro. 705. We support this bill because

         14  it allows for greater public participation in the

         15  landmarking process. Preservation has long been a

         16  grassroots movement. Intro. 705 helps ensure that

         17  the public has the opportunity to speak in a public

         18  forum about the buildings that matter most in our

         19  neighborhoods.

         20                 GVSHP does understand that the

         21  language of the bill needs to be clarified. In

         22  particular, the language in this section requiring

         23  the Landmarks Preservation Commission to hold a

         24  public hearing for buildings eligible for the State

         25  and National Register of Historic Places needs some
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          2  attention.

          3                 We suggest that this section be

          4  worded to more clearly state there is a formal

          5  request for evaluation submitted to the LPC for an

          6  individual building or a historic district, and that

          7  the building or district is eligible for the State

          8  and National Register, then the LPC must hold a

          9  public hearing.

         10                 In addition, GVSHP is concerned about

         11  the additional workload that Intro. 705 may put on

         12  the Landmarks Preservation Commission which is

         13  already underfunded and understaffed.

         14                 We ask that the Council ensure that

         15  the LPC has adequate funding and staff for carrying

         16  out both the workload it has now and any additional

         17  workload that may result from Intro. 705.

         18                 GVSHP applauds this effort to expand

         19  the opportunities for hearing on buildings

         20  considered potential candidates for landmarking, and

         21  we thank Council Member Perkins and others for

         22  bringing this bill forward.

         23                 We hope that this bill will be given

         24  an opportunity for refinement and a vote.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 MS. GOUGH: I'm Christabel Gough from

          3  the Society for the Architecture of the City. Our

          4  group has been monitoring the Landmarks Preservation

          5  Commission for a little over 20 years, and during

          6  that time we have seen marked changes in designation

          7  hearing policy.

          8                 I think you should not look at the

          9  last 40 years as a unified period. In the 1980s

         10  there was much more public participation.

         11  Architectural historians, both professional and

         12  amateur usually spoke and there was competition to

         13  bring forward new information and new arguments, in

         14  part because it was real hearing which could affect

         15  decisions. There was no guarantee that designation

         16  would follow.

         17                 After 1994, public participation in

         18  all aspects of the Commission's work no longer

         19  received the same encouragement. In tandem, the

         20  annual number of designations was fixed at a lower

         21  level and items were rarely brought to hearing

         22  unless designation had been determined already.

         23                 The need to take the public pulse, to

         24  determine the breadth and caliber of public support

         25  was no longer felt under administrations whose
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          2  policy was to limit designation, professionalize the

          3  decision-making process, as you earlier heard Mr.

          4  Slattery mention, and starve the Commission of

          5  resources.

          6                 The proposed legislation which we

          7  support aims to create more balanced designation

          8  process. However, we do want to propose a possible

          9  modification.

         10                 If all properties found eligible for

         11  the State and National Registers automatically

         12  received designation hearing, we fear that political

         13  pressure might be brought to bear on the State

         14  office not to make findings of eligibility in

         15  certain cases or to reduce the overall number of

         16  findings.

         17                 Particularly under the present City

         18  policies on zoning initiatives, there is a stream of

         19  many hundreds, hundreds of properties determined

         20  eligible. A situation which may not be paralleled in

         21  other jurisdictions which have legislation similar

         22  to what you are proposing.

         23                 To avoid such an outcome we propose

         24  that you look at this alternative, reduce the number

         25  of required hearings to focus on State and National
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          2  Register eligible buildings that are currently

          3  endangered. A mandatory calendaring and public

          4  designation hearing should be triggered when a

          5  demolition is sought for a building found eligible

          6  for the Register.

          7                 The LPC should also be required to

          8  review permits for exterior alterations to such

          9  buildings and determine whether the changes would

         10  make designation impossible. If so, the same

         11  mandatory calendaring and hearing should apply.

         12                 The Buildings Department should be

         13  required to computerize findings of eligibility,

         14  notify the Landmarks Commission and delay approval

         15  of the permit for a period of time sufficient to

         16  allow the LPC to act.

         17                 The same procedure should be followed

         18  for properties that are not only determined

         19  eligible, but actually listed on the registers.

         20  Protections for both groups is of the greatest

         21  importance, since listing requires owner consent.

         22                 We would like to thank the Council

         23  and the sponsors of this bill and especially Council

         24  Member Perkins for recognizing the need for this

         25  legislation so well described in the New York Times
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          2  this morning. Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I'd like to ask

          4  everyone who is here not to applaud, whether you

          5  like it or don't like it. This is not a rally. This

          6  is a hearing. And even when they compliment me you

          7  don't have to clap. If you want you can stand up

          8  silently, something like you can smile. You're

          9  allowed to smile. The Council says you're allowed to

         10  smile.

         11                 Okay, next.

         12                 MS. FELICELLA: My name is Elizabeth

         13  Felicella and I'm a professional architectural

         14  photographer and resident of the Upper West Side,

         15  and I'm here in support of this bill, primarily my

         16  work through documentation is to generate public

         17  interest in architecture and participation in the

         18  neighborhoods they live in, and appreciation of its

         19  history and I just want to say, or express how

         20  deeply frustrating it is when a Commission, like the

         21  Landmarks Commission actually undoes that work. And

         22  so I hope that the bill will be passed in order to

         23  not only help people appreciate the history of the

         24  City but also to take care of the City that they

         25  live in now. Thank you.
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          2                 MS. KAISER: Hi. I'm Eliyanna Kaiser.

          3  I'm speaking today for Assembly Member Gottfried who

          4  is in Albany. I'm not going to read his testimony,

          5  particularly because most of it has already been

          6  covered.

          7                 To highlight a few points, though,

          8  the Assembly Member believes that it's with

          9  increasing frequency that preservationists,

         10  community groups and elected officials be in the

         11  position of law being the Landmarks Preservation

         12  Commission, and it seems that when there are

         13  communities, advocates and elected officials united

         14  on issues, it's not achieving the effect of being

         15  able to have a hearing on buildings where there is

         16  almost, you know, unanimous support for at least a

         17  hearing, sometimes not a designation, but at least a

         18  hearing, and that issue is obviously what Council

         19  Member Perkins was taking to heart when he brought

         20  this legislation forward and we really commend him

         21  for doing that.

         22                 Particularly the action that would

         23  allow the Council by a majority vote to bring a

         24  building to have a hearing at the Commission seems

         25  particularly appropriate, although the Assembly

                                                            69

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  Member also thinks that the State Registry has a

          3  good set of criteria for triggering a thoughtful

          4  review of some kind.

          5                 I particularly wanted to say

          6  something else -- right, that the Assembly Member

          7  feels that there should be -- I didn't want to read

          8  the whole thing, I'm sorry -- that there should be a

          9  balance between the interests of property owners,

         10  developers and the public, and that we need to

         11  figure out alternate ways to bring that balance in

         12  order because right now we're out of balance. Now

         13  we're at the point where communities can be united.

         14  Communities, elected officials, advocates can be

         15  united on a building having a hearing that doesn't

         16  do anything, and this action by Council Member

         17  Perkins bringing this bill forward is an excellent

         18  first step.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 MS. KENT: Carolyn Kent, representing

         21  the Morningside Heights Historic District Committee,

         22  which in our meeting last Monday totally votes

         23  support for the introduction of this bill, and I

         24  want also to say it would be hard to express respect

         25  and gratitude that we feel in Morningside Heights
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          2  for the work that has been undertaken, and by our

          3  Councilman Bill Perkins, who will always have a

          4  special role, a special historic standing in this

          5  time of, I hope not too strong a word, reform, of

          6  the Council -- I mean of the Commission.

          7                 Now, the Chair has asked me, and I

          8  always want to do what he says, not to mention 41

          9  Convent Avenue and the Hamilton Theater, and the

         10  residential segment of the Morningside Heights

         11  Historic District Committee and the extraordinary

         12  Hudson Moving and Storage, Ralph Allison's 20-year

         13  home, and I won't even bring up the Cathedral of St.

         14  John the Divine, which after all, did have a

         15  hearing, although the hearing disappeared into think

         16  air, in terms of its burden.

         17                 But let me say this: We face an

         18  urgent problem. Designations offering legal

         19  protection that wanted, that are warranted are

         20  literally dying at the LPC Board, and LPC has boxed

         21  itself in. It clings to its disabling small budget,

         22  wholly inadequate agenda, it spends much too much

         23  commission time on staff level C of A matters, while

         24  it fails historic New York in the face of growing

         25  development pressures.
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          2                 Let's, of course, fund the Commission

          3  adequately, provide it by opening avenues to public

          4  hearings as this bill begins to do with an enlarged

          5  well-studied legal protection agenda worthy of the

          6  great historic city.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you for

          8  always doing what I want. You can speak for another

          9  40 minutes.

         10                 Do any of my colleagues have any

         11  questions?

         12                 Seeing none, thank you very much.

         13                 The next panel, Nancy Cataldi. Cathy

         14  Wassylenko, is that correct? I'm sorry. Cynthia

         15  Dely. Sue Mellis. Oh, Cynthia Doty. I'm sorry. And

         16  Lucy Koteen.

         17                 Okay, we're ready. Mellis. Start from

         18  the right this time. Go ahead, please.

         19                 MS. KOTEEN: Hello. Good morning. My

         20  name is Luch Koteen. I'm here representing the Fort

         21  Greene Association today.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Who is your

         23  Council member?

         24                 MS. KOTEEN: That would be Letitia

         25  James.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Oh, I thought so.

          3                 MS. KOTEEN: Who won by 87 percent in

          4  the last race. Eighty-eight percent in the last

          5  race.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay. Did we get

          7  that on the record?

          8                 MS. KOTEEN: Okay, I'm here to urge

          9  the enactment of Intro 705, as well as Intro. 17. I

         10  thank Councilman Perkins for his bills.

         11                 We have a problem now that is well

         12  known. The developers are on a seek and destroy

         13  mission throughout our boroughs, Brooklyn is an

         14  outstanding example of this. There is this sort of

         15  playing a perverse game of beat the clock, where

         16  they are trying to rush through projects before

         17  rezoning kicks in. Now our neighborhoods are

         18  scrambling to rezone so that the developers cannot

         19  do a wholesale demolition of our history. And I

         20  guess, there's a very nice article in the Brooklyn

         21  Rail, an excellent paper, Brooklyn Rail, saying

         22  Brooklyn is no longer for sale and we have a

         23  phenomenon where people are actually putting up

         24  signs, not for sale signs, but this building is not

         25  for sale, as developers approach them.
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          2                 So, we need the strongest possible

          3  legislation in our Council to help protect our

          4  historic neighborhoods.

          5                 And I just want to say, I guess my

          6  biggest message is that these buildings, these

          7  properties, they're the history of our City and that

          8  history belongs to every resident citizen,

          9  non-citizen person who lives in New York City. It is

         10  the historic buildings and properties that attract

         11  people into New York City, that attract creative

         12  talent, that attract tourism, and those are two of

         13  our biggest industries right now, and people don't

         14  come to see Cleveland. And in Brooklyn, sorry to

         15  mention a specific issue, but in Brooklyn, for

         16  instance, we are trying to protect our neighborhood

         17  from what we call the Scary Gary picture here, the

         18  Scary Gary fantastic Las Vegas-like development

         19  being proposed, which will replace brownstones and

         20  historic properties and bring us some futuristic, I

         21  don't even know if that's an appropriate word, but

         22  fantastic-looking buildings that attract nobody.

         23  People are attracted to Brooklyn and Harlem, to

         24  Bedford Stuyvesant, for their historic buildings,

         25  for their brownstones, for their livable
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          2  communities. They're not attracted to highrises,

          3  impersonal highrises and something that can be

          4  anyplace USA. So, I speak in support of the Council

          5  Member's bill, and it is just a beginning I'm sure.

          6                 The voice of the people need to be

          7  heard.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Excuse me.

          9                 MS. KOTEEN: That's it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Excuse me. I was

         11  kind enough to let you speak, even though you didn't

         12  speak at all about the bill, but as a courtesy to

         13  Council Member James, who would have killed me after

         14  the hearing if I had not.

         15                 So, I just want to make sure, who is

         16  the next witness? The name?

         17                 MS. DOTY: I think I am Cynthia Doty.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay. Are you --

         19                 MS. DOTY: I'm going to speak to the

         20  bill.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Are you a witness

         22  about this bill?

         23                 MS. DOTY: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Are you in

         25  James's district.
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          2                 MS. DOTY: No. I'm in Council Member

          3  Bill Perkins's district. And I thank him for this

          4  bill.

          5                 My name is Cynthia Doty. I'm a

          6  Democratic District Leader, 69th AD, part A. I'm

          7  also a member of two community groups, West Siders

          8  for Responsible Development and the Coalition to

          9  Preserve Community.

         10                 Both groups are dealing with

         11  overdevelopment and the destruction of historic

         12  neighborhoods and historic buildings.

         13                 I'm here in support of this bill,

         14  Intro. 705 which will allow City Council to call for

         15  public hearings about the proposed landmarking of

         16  properties.

         17                 It's a much needed piece of

         18  legislation. It's an additional tool for not only

         19  preservationists, but communities that care about

         20  the character of their neighborhoods.

         21                 As many people have testified today,

         22  we are under assault throughout this City by a real

         23  estate industry that is on a rush to demolish

         24  structures and build skyscrapers.

         25                 Many of these developers are now
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          2  international conglomerates that have no regard for

          3  our communities and the historic buildings that they

          4  might destroy, but instead are out for financial

          5  investments.

          6                 There are very few hurdles for them.

          7  Often buildings are gone before communities can even

          8  get involved. The community feels shut out, and

          9  wants desperately to have more forums. We're opposed

         10  to insider deals being done behind closed doors.

         11                 If the LPC will not provide such

         12  forums, then City Council should have that option.

         13                 I object to the Commission's

         14  arguments that were made earlier as to why they

         15  oppose this bill.

         16                 First, it does not violate the

         17  Charter of the City of New York. It rather

         18  underscores the mandate of elected City Council

         19  members to fully represent their constituents.

         20                 Secondly, the Commission argues that

         21  hearings would be too costly. This is an outrageous

         22  argument. Such logic might claim that since

         23  elections are costly, we should abolish them.

         24  Government's job is to represent the voters and

         25  protect their homes and neighborhoods.
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          2                 The public expects their elected

          3  officials to be accessible and hear their concerns

          4  and keep them informed about what they and their

          5  government agencies are doing.  Through this

          6  legislation, Intro. 705, the communities will, and

          7  the elected officials, and government will be able

          8  to work better. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         10                 Next, please.

         11                 MS. CATALDI: Good afternoon. My name

         12  is Nancy Cataldi. I'm President of the Richmond Hill

         13  Historical Society, which is in Queens.

         14                 We're here to support this bill

         15  because we've been trying since 1997 to have a

         16  creative historic district, and we've become so

         17  disillusioned by everything and we've worked with

         18  all the agencies, and we have 100 percent community

         19  support. Every time we go to landmarks, we get a

         20  dead end and we've had them come out over and over

         21  again. We've had all kinds of support.

         22                 We have a need to reform landmarks.

         23  We need to open the doors to more communities. When

         24  communities want this kind of thing, the people

         25  should be heard.
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          2                 Again, we're losing our history so

          3  fast by overdevelopment. We've rezoned our

          4  neighborhood so that we could stop the developers,

          5  and it doesn't even seem to matter with the

          6  Department of Buildings. They're still demolishing

          7  the houses. So we worked hard for all volunteers,

          8  and as people of this community and this City, we

          9  need some help. Please do this bill, it's important.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 Next, please.

         14                 MS. WASSYLENKO: My name is Cathy

         15  Wassylenko. I represent the Brooklyn-based New York

         16  Preservation Alliance.

         17                 We would like to thank Councilman

         18  Perkins for introducing this new legislation, and we

         19  thoroughly support this bill.

         20                 Unfortunately, the New York City

         21  Landmarks Commission has long abandoned its mandate

         22  to protect and preserve our historic architecture.

         23                 We have seen hundreds of magnificent

         24  structures demolished, while the Commission has

         25  looked the other way.
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          2                 We would like to take the opportunity

          3  again to stress the need to restructure and enlarge

          4  the LPC and create a body whose sole mission is to

          5  proactively preserve our dwindling historic

          6  resources.

          7                 Our City is irrevocably diminished

          8  with every piece of history that is destroyed. New

          9  York is a cultural mecca. Our unique architectural

         10  treasures from the quirky to the magnificent, are

         11  what draw creative talents and tourists alike from

         12  all over the world, yet our City Administration is

         13  partnering with developers to create big box stores

         14  in midwest shopping malls and so-called luxury

         15  condominiums, skyscrapers in the most historically

         16  sensitive areas.

         17                 If we need an economic incentive and

         18  all else seems to fall on deaf political ears, two

         19  of New York's largest industries are inextricably

         20  linked to the safe-keeping of our historic fabric,

         21  tourism and film.

         22                 Cafes, restaurants, bed and

         23  breakfasts, art galleries, boutiques and Bohemian

         24  industrial spaces, are the job venues that will

         25  produce infinite employment opportunities at all
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          2  levels in a burgeoning tourist industry.

          3                 It is this that will sustain New

          4  York's great heart and livable human society.

          5                 As for the film industry, as a member

          6  of United Scenic Artists Local 829, I can assure you

          7  that tax incentives will not be enough to entice the

          8  huge economic sector, if the natural City backdrops

          9  continue to dwindle.

         10                 We urge passage of Intro. 705, but

         11  also of Intro. 317, which would mandate review of

         12  buildings before demolition permits are issued.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         15                 Next, please.

         16                 MS. MELLINS: I'm Sue Mellins. I'm

         17  just speaking for myself. I live in the area of 2

         18  Columbus Circle, and I'm not going to mention that

         19  again, but I am very thankful to Councilor Perkins.

         20  I've been, it's been ten years now since the

         21  Landmarks Preservation Commission has, we've

         22  addressed it on a certain subject, and there was no

         23  response. And so the 60 days, you know, possibility

         24  of things being heard, at least my voice being

         25  heard, others' people's voices being heard or
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          2  considered is very, it's the first sign of hope that

          3  I've felt in a long time. I have to say that it's

          4  been frustrating, demoralizing to be up against a

          5  Commission that doesn't respond to the needs of the

          6  communities.

          7                 That's about all.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 Okay, next panel we have Thomas

         11  Wirth, Mr. Adams, Kate Wood, Linda Eskenas, and

         12  Simeon Bankhoff.

         13                 Okay, we'll start from the left this

         14  time.

         15                 Go ahead, Mr. Adams.

         16                 MR. ADAMS: Good afternoon. My name is

         17  Michael Adams, and I'm here representing myself, but

         18  really in a way I think representing all people who

         19  care about the future of the preservation of our

         20  great historic structures in New York City.

         21                 How incredible. We've got people from

         22  every single borough here today, all joining in,

         23  about this issue of historic preservation.

         24                 Now, I'd like to thank Arlene Simon

         25  and Landmark West for their relentless pursuit of
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          2  the preservation of 2 Columbus Circle, because that

          3  has become a kind of focal point of this issue.

          4                 But that said, I want to stress that

          5  it's evident, based on all the people who are here

          6  today, that 2 Columbus Circle is not what this

          7  legislation is about.

          8                 This legislation is about people in

          9  neighborhoods all over the City who don't have the

         10  resources of landmark west, who don't have the World

         11  Monument Fund, Robert AM Stern, and the National

         12  Trust for Historic Preservation who have come out

         13  and asked for a public hearing for their building,

         14  and, yet, what we have all joined here today is to

         15  say, if Landmark West, all of those resources can't

         16  get a hearing, then what do we need to do to be able

         17  to get a public hearing in our neighborhood?

         18                 And that's why it's essential for us

         19  to have this legislation.

         20                 Now, people have talked about how

         21  this might overwhelm and consume all of the

         22  resources and efforts of the Commission well into

         23  the future, but there are other jurisdictions

         24  throughout the country, in Boston, in Philadelphia,

         25  which use their State Historic Preservation offices
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          2  to initiate calendaring of buildings. Not

          3  designation of buildings but calendaring of

          4  buildings.

          5                 And do we, any of us in this room

          6  believe that the secretary of the interior standards

          7  and those of the landmarks preservation commission

          8  are so divergent that they cannot be used as a

          9  model, that there can't be some reconciliation

         10  between those two standards?

         11                 So, lastly, I just want to say that

         12  there are even in Charleston, South Carolina, and in

         13  Georgia, they have two Landmarks Commissions there

         14  where these Landmarks Commissions predate the

         15  Secretary of Interior Standards, and they have

         16  different standards than the Secretary of Interior

         17  Standards, and yet they use their State Historic

         18  Preservation Offices to allow them to guide them in

         19  proposing designations as well.

         20                 So, it can happen in these other

         21  places. It can happen in New York. And thanks to

         22  Bill Perkins for bringing this about, and thank you,

         23  particularly, to Simcha Felder. It was Simcha Felder

         24  who eight years ago --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I'm sorry.
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          2                 MR. ADAMS: It was Simcha Felder who

          3  eight years ago said to us, from the community, the

          4  preservation community, said write a letter to the

          5  Landmarks Commission with your concerns, and if your

          6  letter is not answered, or depending on how it's

          7  answered, that will give us then the opportunity

          8  maybe to have a public hearing.

          9                 Well, that letter was not answered,

         10  and it was resent to the current chair and it was

         11  not answered, and so we had a hearing and we had

         12  another hearing, and we're here today and we've got

         13  to not rest until this bill is passed and we can

         14  reform our Landmarks Law in New York City.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you. No,

         17  no, no. I said you can smile.

         18                 Next.

         19                 MS. WOOD: Thank you very much. Thank

         20  you, Michael Henry Adams. Thank you, Council Member

         21  Felder, Council Member Perkins. Thank you all for

         22  this opportunity to testify in full support of

         23  Intro. 705. My name is Kate Wood. I'm speaking on

         24  behalf of Landmark West. I'm here to let you know

         25  that this legislation is urgently needed as the
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          2  article by the New York Times architecture critic

          3  Nicolai Ouroussoff underscores in this morning's

          4  paper. For so many, for too many of our City's most

          5  beloved buildings, this bill is the last best hope.

          6                 Passing this bill before the end of

          7  the legislative year may be the single most

          8  important thing that you can do to effect the future

          9  shape of our City.

         10                 In passing this bill, the Council

         11  would demonstrate the kind of leadership and

         12  foresight that it did when it created New York's

         13  Landmarks Law 40 years ago. The 1965 law established

         14  the nation's first and strongest framework for

         15  preserving our architectural, historical and

         16  cultural heritage, a model that has been replicated

         17  by cities throughout the country.

         18                 But as the Times points out, our

         19  City's Landmarks Preservation Commission has lost

         20  the confidence of preservationists at home because

         21  of their repeated refusal to use the Landmarks Law

         22  to hold hearings on buildings such as 2 Columbus

         23  Circle, and so many others that have widespread

         24  grassroot support and that meet the eligibility

         25  standards for the State Register of Historic Places,
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          2  which are more specific but not fundamentally

          3  different than local standards.

          4                 The original Landmarks Law gives the

          5  City Council the power to approve or deny landmarks

          6  after they have already been designated by the

          7  Landmarks Commission. However, the law is mute on

          8  the process of obtaining a landmark designation

          9  hearing in the first place.

         10                 The Landmarks Commission is left with

         11  full discretion as to which buildings in districts

         12  it will or will not here, too often rushing in at

         13  the last minute or failing to act at all.

         14                 Intro. 705 would help to create a

         15  more transparent, understandable and balanced

         16  process by creating additional mechanisms for

         17  ensuring that worthy buildings receive the public

         18  hearings they deserve.

         19                 And I just want to respond quickly to

         20  some of the comments by the LPC Counsel Mark

         21  Silberman. The language of this bill is intended to

         22  be as straightforward and simple as possible. Many

         23  of the concerns that the Council raised that the

         24  others have raised, have to do with LPC rules that

         25  are not explicitly spelled out in the landmarks law.
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          2                 The LPC has the ability to amend

          3  those rules and it should amend those rules.

          4                 If the Commission does not change,

          5  does not adapt, does not accommodate the very basic

          6  kinds of amendments that we're asking for through

          7  Landmarks Law, then it will not survive, and the

          8  buildings that matter most in New York will not

          9  survive.

         10                 Please pass this bill. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         12                 Next.

         13                 MR. BANKOFF: Good afternoon, Council

         14  members. I'm Simeon Bankoff, Executive Director of

         15  the Historic Districts Council.

         16                 The Council is well aware that HDC

         17  feels strongly that landmarks are a public trust;

         18  indeed as foreseen by this body in the dare I say

         19  landmark legislation adopted in 1965, their

         20  designation and existence benefits the City as a

         21  while through a variety of means; economic, cultural

         22  and spiritual.

         23                 As HDC feels that this bill

         24  encourages the furtherance of preservation and the

         25  public involvement in this worthy goal, we support
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          2  its intent. As the City Council knows, HDC feels and

          3  City Charter mandates that government and the public

          4  are partners in the campaign to preserve our City.

          5  The proposed bill speaks well of the Council's

          6  desire to promote those goals. I would be remiss at

          7  this time not to wonder why other legislation that

          8  also promotes preservation such as Intro. 317-A has

          9  not moved forward, but that's beyond the scope of

         10  today's hearing.

         11                 Is there a problem with the

         12  Administration's responsiveness to the public's

         13  desire for preservation attention? Yes. Have we lost

         14  worthy buildings because of bureaucracy or the lack

         15  of resources? Definitely.

         16                 Might this proposal do something to

         17  alleviate the problem and free up the log jam?

         18  Hopefully, and that is why we support it.

         19                 There is legitimate concern that this

         20  legislation will dictate the policies of the

         21  Landmarks Commission and might overburden the

         22  already under-resourced agency or prevent it from

         23  following its own priorities.

         24                 That's why HDC feels it's imperative

         25  that the Council must provide the Landmarks
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          2  Commission the funds and resources sufficient to

          3  cope with the inevitable influx of new potential

          4  landmarks.

          5                 As a possible model of handling

          6  workload, an analogous situation of Council

          7  direction and agency action can be found at the

          8  Department of City Planning. Every year, City

          9  Planning comes to Council with a basic work plan of

         10  areas the agency is planning to look at.

         11                 During the year, Council can request

         12  studies of areas for potential rezonings, and fund

         13  City Planning to do so.

         14                 If a similar practice were adopted

         15  for the work of the LPC, this might modulate

         16  workload and engender more community support for

         17  designations, although that doesn't really seem to

         18  be a problem, perhaps also there should be a set

         19  aside day or days for Council-mandated hearings as

         20  mentioned in previous hearings.

         21                 The second part of the bill

         22  concerning the intersection between the State and

         23  National Register and local landmark listing is well

         24  meaning but not workable in the language currently

         25  proposed.
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          2                 The impetus to want a building that

          3  is on or eligible to the National Register to be

          4  considered for New York City Landmarks status is

          5  laudable, but currently filled with pitfalls.

          6                 The two designations, as has been

          7  mentioned, have similar aims but different

          8  requirements. We would suggest that the National

          9  Register Status of the building or any other kind of

         10  resource, including neighborhoods that are not

         11  mentioned in the bill's current language, be

         12  accounted for and acknowledged when a request for an

         13  evaluation is made to LPC. Perhaps there is some

         14  deeper way that inclusion on the Register should

         15  interact with local designation such as Christabel

         16  Gough's eminently sensible and very well thought out

         17  suggestion, and this notion definitely merits much

         18  more study.

         19                 However, since local designation is a

         20  more binding restriction than national, it would

         21  seem most logical in our view that buildings

         22  seriously under consideration by LPC, and definitely

         23  those buildings which are calendared be forwarded to

         24  the New York State SHPO for a determination of

         25  eligibility as a matter of course, not vice-versa.
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          2                 Thank you for your consideration on

          3  this matter.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 Next.

          7                 MR. WIRTH: I'm Tom Wirth. I'm an

          8  independent scholar with particular interest in the

          9  Harlem Renaissance, and of course the Harlem

         10  community finds itself in particular danger these

         11  days because of the pressure of increasing prices

         12  and development.

         13                 And I talked in previous hearings

         14  about some of the important historical structures

         15  that face possible demolition eventually because of

         16  this pressure and that includes the Miriam Building

         17  on 145th and Lenox, which was the home of the Harlem

         18  Community Arts Center, which was a very important

         19  center and one of the major artists associated with

         20  that center has just died, I noticed in the Times

         21  today, Ernie Critchlow.

         22                 We find a very strange situation here

         23  where the Landmarks Commission, if it had been

         24  operating under the same rules that it operates now,

         25  and it has been in existence before the demolition
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          2  of Penn Station, and if it had decided that it did

          3  not want to hold a hearing about the demolition of

          4  Penn Station, then there would have been no hearing

          5  about Penn Station.

          6                 The very reason why it was

          7  established is being undercut by the way it does

          8  business. There has to be some trigger so that a

          9  structure that has wide support and wide historic

         10  interest, it can be at least triggered, calendared

         11  for hearing, even though the so-called experts on

         12  the Commission decide that it isn't worth it.

         13                 Well, you know, who are they to say,

         14  when you get down to it, it's particularly of

         15  concern to districts like Harlem, where expertise in

         16  that history is not widely spread around, yet that

         17  situation is getting better, but it still is a

         18  problem. Do the people on the staff in their wisdom

         19  really know enough of the history in many of our

         20  neighborhoods to make such a final decision about

         21  things? Well, maybe they could make a preliminary

         22  decision but should it be a final decision, should

         23  it really be unappeallable? Should the Commission be

         24  deprived of the knowledge that will come from the

         25  public and from other interested people when a
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          2  hearing is calendared. And that's one of the things

          3  that I find quite bizarre about the argument, the

          4  enormous staff time it supposedly takes to prepare

          5  for a hearing, well, doesn't a hearing actually

          6  involve ultimately reducing the amount of staff time

          7  to get the information? The information is brought

          8  to the --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Excuse me, sir?

         10  Excuse me. Are you almost done?

         11                 MR. WIRTH: Yes, I'm done.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         13                 Next.

         14                 MS. ESKENAS: Hello. Linda Eskenas.

         15  I'm speaking for the West Brighton Restoration

         16  Society and also the Preservation League of New

         17  York.

         18                 A beautiful house from 1846 is on the

         19  verge of being destroyed to put up three structures

         20  that will serve to destroy the neighborhood.

         21                 The house is the cornerstone of the

         22  neighborhood. It is the oldest house on this New

         23  York Street. It was there when there was nothing

         24  else and it should be there in the future so that

         25  those who come after us can be inspired by it and
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          2  respect those that came before them and each other.

          3                 We need our values, we need our

          4  heritage. We're in an emergency where our

          5  neighborhoods, our homes, our buildings, our

          6  heritage, our quality of life and our economy is

          7  being destroyed.

          8                 We are not a third-world country.

          9  This is New York City. Recently a borough-wide group

         10  was formed and this is the overriding issue for

         11  taxpayers all over the City. Our economy is being

         12  endangered by builders and over-developers who

         13  over-inflate the market and are receiving incredible

         14  tax exemptions while destroying our housing stock,

         15  our heritage and our neighborhoods.

         16                 The builders destroy and get their

         17  money out. The taxpayers will be left to pay for the

         18  predatory over-building, as the market corrects

         19  itself.

         20                 We need to help those who are trying

         21  to save our City, for adaptive reuse of historic

         22  buildings, to restore buildings, to help our

         23  environment in infrastructure.

         24                 We must stop the destruction of our

         25  City. Intro. 705 will allow New York City Council to
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          2  save our neighborhoods and our City and save

          3  historic sites that already have been recognized by

          4  our State and federal government.

          5                 We ask for intelligent planning and

          6  positive empowerment of those measures that would

          7  save our City.

          8                 We urge you to vote for Intro. 705 so

          9  that City Council and the people of New York can

         10  work together to save our City and the American

         11  heritage that belongs to all of us.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 The next panel will be Walter South,

         17  Avra Petrides, Jack Taylor, Cynthia Crane, Elizabeth

         18  Ashby.

         19                 Okay, begin. Just press the button.

         20                 MS. PETRIDES: Good morning. I'm Avra

         21  Petrides of the Bridge Stage of the Arts.

         22                 I'm going to speak about a specific

         23  building, but I won't really do so because of your

         24  directive, Chairman Felder. However, I have to refer

         25  briefly to it to get to my more general conclusion.
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          2  I was going to --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Excuse me. I

          4  appreciate what you said, but I'm trying to adhere

          5  to the two minutes.

          6                 MS. PETRIDES: Oh, it would have been

          7  two minutes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay, good.

          9                 MS. PETRIDES: It would have been

         10  exactly two minutes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay, so, we're

         12  starting again.

         13                 MS. PETRIDES: All right. Thanks.

         14                 All right, I was going to speak at

         15  greater length about the Hamilton Theater on

         16  Broadway and 146th Street. I'll simply say that this

         17  is a building whose interior and exterior have both

         18  been deemed eligible for listing in the State and

         19  National Registers of Historic Places, and, yet, the

         20  Commission has refused to hold a hearing of the

         21  interior of the Hamilton, though it has designated

         22  its exterior.

         23                 I'll just now come to my conclusion,

         24  and it is that no one can force the Landmarks

         25  Preservation Commission to designate a building and
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          2  in a democracy no one should. But in a democracy

          3  when many, many people have asked to be heard on a

          4  topic such as this one, they should be allowed to

          5  speak. What's at stake is, in the case of the

          6  Hamilton Theater, much more than a one of a kind

          7  theater, what really hangs in the balance is the

          8  democratic process. Columbus Circle is another case

          9  in point. What's happening there is completely

         10  undemocratic. Please reverse this dangerous trend by

         11  voting yes to legislation number 705.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         14                 Next.

         15                 MR. SOUTH: My name is Walter South,

         16  and I support the bill, and I was advised to shut up

         17  after I made this statement. I'm sure the Chair

         18  would agree with this probably, but as Mark Twain

         19  once said, "I was born humble but it didn't last too

         20  long."

         21                 The fact of the matter is the agency

         22  just is not staying on top of things, it's as simple

         23  as that. If you go out to Greenpoint Williamsburg,

         24  look at some of the buildings out there, there is a

         25  building out there that was designed by the same
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          2  architect who did the George Washington Bridge, and

          3  it's not designated as a landmark. And I've had

          4  similar experiences with the agency. We were invited

          5  to come down to the agency last year for a meeting,

          6  and we arranged for about six people to show up, and

          7  we walked into the room and the agency staff sat

          8  down and said why are we here?

          9                 We said, why are we here? You asked

         10  us to come, that's why we're here.

         11                 Well, what's the purpose?

         12                 Well, don't you know what the purpose

         13  is? Why did you ask us to come?

         14                 And they said we assume it was here

         15  about the 197-A, but we weren't sure, had they read

         16  it? And they said, well, they hadn't received it.

         17  And we explained, well, it was sent registered mail,

         18  return receipt requested. I'm sure we have the

         19  receipt in our office so we could check, and they

         20  finally admitted that they actually had received the

         21  registered piece of mail and they actually signed

         22  for it but they hadn't read it.

         23                 You know, this is preposterous. We

         24  come down for a meeting and they don't even know

         25  what the meeting is for. And we come down at their
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          2  invitation, and we still don't know what the meeting

          3  is for and they haven't prepared for it.

          4                 This is an agency which is failing.

          5  And it's been my experience when agencies fail, it's

          6  usually from the head. I mean, when a fish dies,

          7  it's usually the head that dies first. And as Mayor

          8  Curly said about the situation in Boston at one

          9  time, he said that nothing will improve politics at

         10  Boston like a first class funeral. I think the same

         11  applies here.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         13                 MS. CRANE: My name is Cynthia Crane.

         14  I am a member of the Greenwich Village Block

         15  Association. I chair my local block association, the

         16  Moiry Anglel West 11th Street, and I chair the

         17  Friends of the Jefferson Market Library Bell. I

         18  defer to all the people who expressed things so very

         19  well, Christabel Gough, Adam Wood, but I would beg

         20  that you do something for transparency, speak to the

         21  people. My entire family lives in New York City,

         22  including my fifth generation native New Yorker

         23  grandson. We really care. This is our home. And

         24  these are our Grand Canyons, these buildings, and

         25  you take them away, you rob us.
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          2                 I would also like to say that the

          3  budget of Landmarks is a travesty. The Signature

          4  Building in Greenwich Village and our symbol is the

          5  Greenwich Village Jefferson Market Library, it's

          6  enshrouded with a scaffolding that's about to

          7  approach its fourth winter of snows and rain. The

          8  building is deteriorating, and nothing is being done

          9  to preserve this landmarked building, and I beg of

         10  you to address these problems. That's all I have to

         11  say.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 Next, please.

         15                 MR. TAYLOR: I'm Jack Taylor of the

         16  Stuyvesant Park Neighborhood Association in

         17  Manhattan. We well know the power the City Council

         18  has to overturn a landmark designation.

         19                 In 1991, we were the first victim of

         20  it. The House at 327 East 17th Street, in which in

         21  the 1980s, the great Czech composer Anthony Dvorjak

         22  lived and wrote amongst other masterpieces the New

         23  World Symphony with its African American folk

         24  themes, was destroyed because of that power.

         25                 While the Council's vote was far from
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          2  unanimous, it nevertheless dealt a crushing blow to

          3  the designation of cultural landmarks in New York

          4  City.

          5                 The headline in the New York Times,

          6  no, not today's but that of June 21st, 1991, was

          7  "For the first time Council uses power to block

          8  landmark."

          9                 So, it may seem ironic that we are

         10  here today to support Intro. 705, but our rationale

         11  is simple. If the City Council has the power to

         12  overturn landmark designations, in all fairness, it

         13  should have the power to require that the Landmarks

         14  Preservation Commission consider landmark

         15  designations chosen by the Council for the public

         16  hearing.

         17                 Landmarking should be a two-way

         18  street, and those elected to be the people's

         19  representatives in the City Council should have the

         20  first say, as well as the last.

         21                 Finally, we urge you to disregard the

         22  position of those who are opposed to this

         23  legislation on the grounds that it would place an

         24  undue financial burden on the Landmarks Commission.

         25  That burden is the fault of this Administration's
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          2  insufficient funding, or limited resources, as Mr.

          3  Silberman described it, and the Landmarks Hearing

          4  Bill might well be the incentive to increase it.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you. Next,

          7  please.

          8                 MS. ASHBY: Good afternoon. My name is

          9  Elizabeth Ashby, and I am speaking as President of

         10  the Historic Neighborhood Enhancement Alliance. And

         11  I think that one of your previous hearings indicated

         12  the vital need for this, the Chairman, when he was

         13  describing his work and all he had to do, said the

         14  number, and I don't remember exactly what the number

         15  was, of the buildings that they designate each year

         16  and the number of requests. And the buildings

         17  designated were a small fraction of the requests.

         18                 Well, I think we can see right from

         19  that that this is a losing proposition for New

         20  York's historic buildings. If we designate a

         21  fraction each year, we build up a pile, and we're

         22  losers all along. I mean, the frog in the well will

         23  get out quicker than our landmarks will be saved.

         24                 I think this bill is an excellent

         25  proposal. I think it also deals with one problem
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          2  that the representative of the Commission brought

          3  up, because he said they don't want to work on

          4  landmarks that will be overturned by the Council.

          5                 Well, this bill in itself solves that

          6  right away. And also, the burden on the expertise of

          7  the Commissioners was something, and they do have a

          8  lot of expertise in the Commission, and I admire it,

          9  but they don't have all the world's expertise.

         10  There's a lot of expertise in this room, there's a

         11  lot of expertise in the Council, and I certainly

         12  think we can trust the Council to weed out a

         13  12-year-old A & P or something like that, if the

         14  neighborhood wants to preserve it. Not that they do.

         15                 So, I think that this bill is needed.

         16  It's a very good bill. The criteria, you know, one

         17  bit of rewording here and there could address any

         18  problem that they see, and I hope you'll enact it

         19  and enact it very soon.

         20                 Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 And the final panel, we have two

         24  people: Albert Bennett and Robert Furman.

         25                 Is there anyone else that submitted a
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          2  form that has not been called? Thank you.

          3                 We're ready.

          4                 MR. FURMAN: My name is Robert Furman.

          5  I'm the Chairman of the Fourth Borough Neighborhood

          6  Preservation Alliance.

          7                 The Alliance was founded in May of

          8  this year because of a public outcry against

          9  overdevelopment in the City's so-called outer

         10  boroughs. It includes three borough historians and

         11  representatives of major civic organizations

         12  throughout Queens, Brooklyn, Staten Island and the

         13  Bronx.

         14                 While contextual zoning and

         15  downzoning are major tools communities are using to

         16  regulate the nature of new construction, landmarking

         17  is the only one that prevents the tearing down of

         18  important buildings and preserves neighborhoods as

         19  they are.

         20                 A major problem with landmark

         21  designation today, for both individual and historic

         22  district designations, is that insufficient

         23  attention is paid to the outer boroughs. By giving

         24  the Council the authority to indicate which sites it

         25  favors designating by directing that the Landmark
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          2  Preservation Commission hold a hearing, the Perkins

          3  Bill will go far towards solving this problem while

          4  making it less likely in the future that designated

          5  sites will be turned down by the Council.

          6                 Furthermore, by increasing the

          7  ability of community organizations to forward the

          8  designation process by petitioning their member on

          9  particular items, the bill will help guarantee that

         10  in the future significant structures are not

         11  demolished for lack of designation.

         12                 Brooklyn's 1791 Van Pelt Woolsey

         13  House in the former Town of Flatlands was one of 14

         14  remaining Dutch Colonial farmhouses in Kings County.

         15  It was raised without being considered for

         16  landmarking and the developer therefore had no

         17  obligation to preserve it.

         18                 Furthermore, I would like to urge you

         19  to try to meet some of the objections that were made

         20  today by amending the law. In particular, clearly

         21  there is a simple amendment available to try to meet

         22  the objection about the State register. Simply

         23  insert the language that the property has to meet

         24  City standards also. And also, I think you do need

         25  to clarify whether you intend to include all
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          2  historic districts and scenic landmarks under the

          3  purview of this legislation.

          4                 Thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

          6                 Next.

          7                 MR. BENNETT: My name is Robert

          8  Bennett. I am representing the Greenwich Village

          9  Community Task Force, and I would just very simply

         10  like to restate our support for Intro. 705.

         11                 I should also probably mention, as a

         12  public member of the Landmarks Committee of

         13  Community Board 2, Manhattan, that the Landmarks

         14  Committee also passed a resolution supporting Intro.

         15  705, and certainly to thank Council Member Perkins

         16  for this very important piece of legislation.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 Do any of my colleagues, does my

         20  colleague, Council Member Perkins, have anything to

         21  say before we close the hearing?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I just want

         23  to thank you, again, Mr. Chairman, and your staff,

         24  for bringing up this point of having some

         25  legislation that clearly is responsive to the
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          2  concerns that came before us in the hearings that

          3  your Committee and my Committee had, and is

          4  responsive to a broad and deep constituency that has

          5  a variety of levels of expertise.

          6                 I think that this hearing brought

          7  forth not only the value of this legislation, but

          8  also some additional ideas that I think will

          9  strengthen the legislation, and I would ask that the

         10  Chair and Council and staff begin as quickly as

         11  possible to reach out to those who have presented us

         12  with some, I think, important ideas that we might be

         13  able to include in this legislation and continue to

         14  move forward with an even better piece of

         15  legislation.

         16                 So, I can't thank you enough. And,

         17  again, to the preservationist community, to all of

         18  you who are here now and who have been here in the

         19  past, thank you so much for giving me the

         20  opportunity to represent your interests and be a

         21  part of this very, very important movement for the

         22  City of New York.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         24                 Adjourned.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 1:25 p.m.)
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